ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY COW TTEE
May 3, 2002
1:44 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Robin Tayl or, Chair
Senat or Dave Donl ey, Vice Chair
Senat or John Cowdery

Senat or CGene Therri ault

Senat or Johnny Ellis

MEVMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 208(RES)
"An Act relating to aquatic farm ng of shellfish; and providing
for an effective date."

MOVED CSHB 208( RES) OQUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 286(RES) am
"An Act allowing a person to hold two commercial fishing entry
permts for a salnon fishery for the purpose of consolidating the
fishing fleet for a salnon fishery; relating to salnon fishery
associ ations and to sal non fishery assessnents; and providing for
an effective date."

MOVED CSHB 286( RES) am OQUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 498(FIN) am

"An Act expressing legislative intent regarding privately
operated correctional prison space and services; relating to the
devel opnent and financing of privately operated correctional
prison space and services; authorizing the Departnment of
Corrections to enter into an agreenent for the confinenent and
care of prisoners in privately operated correctional prison space
inthe Cty of Wiittier; giving notice of and approving the entry
into and the issuance of certificates of participation for the
upgrade, expansion, and replacenent of a certain correctional
prison in the Gty of Bethel; giving notice of and approving the
entry into |ease-financing agreenents for that project; and
providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSHB 498( FIN) am QUT OF COW TTEE

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG SELECT COWM TTEE ON LEGQ SLATI VE ETHI CS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- May 3, 2002



Arthur S. Robi nson

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 13
Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to inflation- proofing the permanent fund.

MOVED CSSJR 13(RES) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HB 208 - See Resources m nutes dated 4/24/02.

HB 286 - See Resources mnutes dated 4/8/ 02 and 4/ 24/ 02.

HB 498 — No previous action to record.

SIR 13 - See State Affairs mnutes dated 4/26/01, 2/21/02,
3/ 21/ 02 and 4/16/02.

W TNESS REG STER

Representati ve Drew Scal zi

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 208 and HB 286.

M. Roger Painter

Al aska Shell fish G owers Associ ation

PO Box 704

Juneau, AK 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 208.

M. Ron Long
No address given
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 208.

Ms. Sue Aspel und

Cordova District Fishermen United

PO Box 1715

Cordova, AK 99574

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 286.

M. Victor Smith
No address given
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 286.

M. David Bedford

Sout heast Al aska Sei ners Associ ati on

526 Main Street

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 286.

M. Jerry MCune
United Fishermen O Al aska

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- May 3, 2002



211 4" St. Ste. 110
Juneau, AK 99801-1143
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 286.

M. John Manly

Staff to Representative John Harris

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 498.

M. Frank Smith
No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

M. Ben Butler

Mayor of Wittier

PO Box 741

Whittier, AK 99693

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 498.

M. Victor Wellington, Sr.

Mayor of Metlakatla Indian Community

P. O Box 8

Met | akat |l a, AK 99926

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 498.

M. Frank Prewitt

8900 Upper Huffrman Rd.

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 498.

M. Charl es Canpbel l
3020 Dougl as Hwy.
Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

M. David Katzeek

Al aska Native Brotherhood Canp #2

320 W1 I oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 498.

M. Margot Knuth

Strategi c Pl anni ng Coordi nat or
Depart ment of Corrections

431 N. Franklin St. Ste. 400
Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

M. Janmes Price
PO Box 7043

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3-

May 3, 2002



Ni ki ski, AK 99635
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

Ms. El sie Hendryx

Kenai Native Association

215 Fidalgo Ave. Ste. 101

Kenai, AK 99611

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 498.

M. Ron WI son
No address given
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

M. Jim LeCrone

Publ i c Saf ety Enpl oyees Associ ation

4300 Boni face Pkwy.

Anchor age, AK 99504

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

M. Rick VanHatten

Al aska Correctional Oficers

4300 Boni face Pkwy.

Anchor age, AK 99504

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

M. Brad WI son

Publ i c Saf ety Enpl oyees Associ ation

4300 Boni face Pkwy.

Anchor age, AK 99504

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

Ms. Dee Hubbard
No address given
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

M. John Duffy

Manager

Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough

PO Box 459

Pal mer, AK 99645- 0459

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 498.

M. Arthur S. Robi nson

35401 Kenai Spur Hwy.

Sol dot na, AK 99669

PCOsSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified for confirmation to the Select
Committee on Legislative Ethics.

M. Jay Hogan

PO Box 21073
Juneau, AK 99802-1073

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- May 3, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIJR 13.

Ms. Sheila R Howe

N. E. C.

No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 13.

M. Robert Storer

Executive Director

Al aska Per manent Fund Cor poration

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 25500

Juneau, AK 99802- 5500

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 13.

M. JimKelly

Director O Comruni cations

Al aska Per manent Fund Cor poration

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 25500

Juneau, AK 99802- 5500

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 13.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-24, SIDE A

CHAIRVAN ROBIN TAYLOR called the Senate Judiciary Conmmttee
neeting to order at 1:44 p.m Senators Cowdery, Therriault and
Chair Taylor were present. The first order of business before
the coonmttee was HB 208.

#HB 208
HB 208- AQUATI C FARMS FOR SHELLFI SH

REPRESENTATI VE DREW SCALZI, sponsor of HB 208, said the aquatic
farm ng act was passed in 1988 to streanline the process by which
people interested in mariculture could acquire sites for aquatic
farns. He said acquiring sites had become problematic because
peopl e often found sites conducive to procreating species close
to transportation routes and applicants were nmet with contention
from individual |andowners or fishermen who used the sites. HB
208 would require the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADFG to
find 90 specific sites that woul d be conducive to both the farner
and the people in the surrounding area. He said ADFG woul d work
with the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) and t he Depart nment
of Environnental Conservation (DEC) to acconplish this task

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked Roger Painter to provide testinony.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- May 3, 2002



MR. ROGER PAINTER, Al aska Shellfish Gowers Association, said HB
208 would provide a way for the mariculture industry to partner
with local communities to find sites around comunities seeking
econom ¢ devel opnent and bring aquatic farnms into production to
benefit the |ocal econony. He said the public process regarding
aquatic farm sites is very intensive, and includes the Al aska
Coastal Zone Managenent process, DNR s best interest findings,
involvenent of the US. Corps of Engineers in issues of
anchorage, and anple tine for public input. He said HB 208 woul d
not affect that process.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M.
Pai nter. There were none.

MR. RON LONG said he was enployed by a shellfish hatchery. He
said HB 208 woul d not change any priority uses or displace prior,

existing or conflicting uses. He wanted to reiterate that the
bill would not change the public process.

He said one of the goals of HB 208 was to engage agencies and the
public in determning sites suitable for aquatic farm ng. He
said the intent was not to cut corners, bunp people off their
sites or take over anchorages. He said the intent of the bill

was to identify sites that would work for the farner and the
St ate.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M. Long.
There were none.

SENATOR COADERY noved CSHB 208(RES) out of committee wth
attached fiscal notes and individual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, CSHB 208(RES) noved out of conmttee
with attached fiscal notes and individual recommendati ons.

#

The next order of business before the commttee was HB 286.

#HB 286

HB 286- FI SHI NG PERM TS/ ASSOCI ATI ONS/ ASSESSMVENTS

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI, sponsor of HB 286, said the bill would
offer the salnon industry a tool for consolidation. He said it
woul d allow individuals to hold two salnon permits in any given
area. He said there was often a |lot of inactivity of permts and
believed there were nore permts issued in sonme areas than

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- May 3, 2002



necessary; nore permts were activated when a fishery becane
heal t hy through an increase in prices or salnon runs. HB 286
woul d offer individuals in the salnon fisheries the opportunity
to buy and hold sone of the permts. The permts would carry no
privileges, such as extra fishing gear or tinme. He said
consolidating the effort would keep fishernen from other areas
fromcomng in and exacerbating the problem of overcrowdi ng.

He said HB 286 was the highest priority bill supported by the
United Fishernmen of Al aska (UFA) because it would offer the nost
benefit to the comercial fishing industry.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked Ms. Sue Aspelund to provide testinony.

M5. SUE ASPELUND, Executive Director, Cordova District Fishernen
United (CDFU), said CDFU represents the fishing famlies of the
Copper River/Prince WIliam Sound area. CDFU believes the
industry needs a variety of tools to pursue structural changes
necessary to conpete in the new gl obal narketplace. HB 286 woul d
provide fishermen with one of the sinplest and nost immediate
tools to get fishing gear out of the water in distressed
fisheries.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M.
Aspel und. There were none.

MR VICTOR SM TH said UFA and processors are saying that HB 286
is part of a plan to revitalize Al askan salnon fisheries. He
said the main authors of HB 286 were M. David Bedford, Executive
Director of the Southeast Al aska Seiners Association (SASA), and
M. Bob Thorstenson, president of UFA and stockhol der of *“Al aska
Seafoods.” He said fishernmen thenselves had very little input on
the bill. The SASA board did not authorize or direct M. Bedford
to proceed on its behalf regarding permt stacking. He said the
board authorized a commttee to explore options for fleet
reduction but while that commttee was exploring options, M.
Bedf ord was also working on a plan of his own. He said M.
Bedford denied saying there was a deal that processors would
support permt stacking in exchange for UFA' s support to keep
gl obal seafoods out. He said M. Bedford now clainms he said UFA
woul dn’t oppose the processors’ new managenent plan if the
processors woul d support permt stacking.

MR. VICTOR SMTH said one of the touted features of HB 286 was
that it could be used in different ways in different fisheries.
He wondered why that woul d be necessary because all Al aska sal non
fisheries were subject to the sane |aws. He said UFA and SASA
al so used the selling point that HB 286 would be in the control

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- May 3, 2002



of fishermen. He said they had possibly been guilty of
involvenent or trade on their global decision. He said
nonresi dents couldn’'t use their permts and were forced to sell.
He said the salnon industry needs to follow the |aw. Key people
involved in HB 286 had conflicts of interest and had broken rul es
of accountability. He said these sane people would probably have
control over permt stacking and how it would work. He believed
HB 286 would be as bad for many Al askans as it had been for the
first round of nonresidents ousted from Al aska fisheries.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M. Victor
Smth. There were none. He asked M. David Bedford to provide
testi nony.

VMR. DAVI D BEDFORD, Executive Director, SASA, said he sat on the
board of UFA for SASA and was licensed to practice |aw in Al aska.
He said HB 286 is the highest priority piece of legislation for
UFA and has a strong nmjority of support wthin that
or gani zati on.

He said UFA brought HB 286 forward because the salnon fisheries
are in dire straits and sone things need to be done to address
the economc difficulties the fisheries are experiencing. He
said HB 286 would give themthe opportunity to reduce the nunber
of people conpeting for a share of a shrinking pie so they could
have a viable fishing business to support the coastal regions
t hat depend on the sal non fisheries.

MR. BEDFORD maintained that HB 286 was drafted to be as
transparent as possible to make sure that control would be in the

hands of the permt holders. It was drafted that way because
they were concerned sonebody might be able to use the bill to
force sonmething on fishernen that they didn't want. He said HB

286 would require a two-thirds vote of all permt holders before
any kind of assessnment could be levied. He said anybody wanting
to initiate the program would be required to go to the permt
hol ders with an outline of the plan so they had a very clear idea
of what would be done and what their noney would be paying for
The program woul d be regional so nobody from another area would
have anything to say about a distant fishery.

MR. BEDFORD said UFA and SASA are asking the Legislature to give
themthe tools to address their problens.

1:55 p. m

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked who woul d buy and hold the permts.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- May 3, 2002



MR. BEDFORD said the |limted entry l|law specifies that only
i ndividuals can hold permts. He said the association would
decide it was going to set up a program and figure out how to do
it. They could contract with a permt holder to send their permt
back to the Comerci al Fisheries Entry Commssion to be
extingui shed, or the association could contract with a permt
hol der to hold a second permt until sonmetine in the future when
the fishery was so lucrative that there should be nore people
fishing. Individuals would hold the permts at all tines.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if HB 286 m ght create a situation where
peopl e woul d buy | ow and hope to sell high.

MR. BEDFORD said that is possible with any kind of effort
reduction program He said the Mgnuson-Stevens Act provided
effort reduction prograns for federal fisheries. A person could
buy a permt and try to speculate on it but he didn't think that
woul d be a very good investnent. He said people currently in the
fishery would probably buy a second permt to hold because they
woul d receive an annual paynment from the association and they
woul d have to conpete with one |l ess boat. He said the association
shoul d be able to contract for | ess noney with a person who woul d
be gaining the additional benefits of |ess conpetition.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any further questions for M.
Bedf ord. There were none.

MR. JERRY MCCUNE, UFA, said HB 286 wouldn’'t work for every
fishery; it would be an option that some fisheries could use. He
said people probably wouldn’t buy another permt in a fishery
where permits cost $60,000 to $70, 000. However, they would
probably buy another permt iif the permt cost $10,000 to
$18,000. He said that m ght be a good investnment for a fisherman
planning to stay in the fishery.

MR. MCCUNE said the associations would be difficult to set up
because the permt holders need to support the idea to start an
association. He said many safeguards are contained in HB 286: a
timeline on assessnments is required; a two-thirds vote of al
permt holders would be required to extend an assessnent; and 25%
of the permit holders could petition to have a vote to change or
renobve an assessnent.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M. MCune.
There were none.

SENATOR CONDERY noved CSHB 286(RES) am out of committee wth
attached zero fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- May 3, 2002



There being no objection, CSHB 286( RES) am noved out of conmttee
Wi th attached zero fiscal note and individual recommendations.
#

The next order of business to cone before the commttee was HB
498.

#HB 498

HB 498- CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI Tl ES

MR, JOHN MANLY, representing the House Finance Commttee, which
sponsored HB 498, said the bill would authorize the Departnent of
Corrections (DOC) to enter into a contract for a privately
operated 1,000-bed prison in Wittier. He said the State would
contract for those beds over a 25-year period. HB 498 would al so
authorize the expansion of the Yukon-Kuskokw m Correctional
Center (YKCC) in Bethel by 96 beds for a cost of $19 million to
be financed through certificates of participation.

SENATOR CONDERY asked about housing for staff.

MR. MANLY said there is a housing problem in Whittier. He
anticipated that housing would be built for staff or staff would
commut e from Anchorage. He said the Departnent of Transportation
& Public Facilities has agreed to keep the Wiittier Tunnel open
17 hours each day if the prison is built in Wittier, which wuld
cover the three shift changes.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if the prison would be built on private
| and or city-owned | and.

MR, MANLY said it would be built on land leased to Wittier by
the Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC).

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about water, sewer, electrical and other
i nfrastructure needs.

MR. MANLY said Whittier believes it has utilities covered because
it has adequate power from Chugach Electric Association, Inc.
(Chugach) and wells to provide water. He said the prison would
have an onsite sewage treatnent plant.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Frank Smith to provide testinony.

MR. FRANK SM TH said he has a 30-year background in the field of
crimnal justice. He said the proposed prison nmakes |ess sense

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- May 3, 2002



than the prison that was proposed in Kenai. He said the prison
in Wittier is simlar to the prison that was proposed in

Wangell but far |less feasible. Representative Andrew Halcro
wrote an opinion piece in the Anchorage Daily News that said the
proposal made no sense unless you | ooked at the noney trail. He

said it doesn’'t make fiscal sense to spend an extra $18 mllion
per year to nove prisoners to Waittier.

MR SMTH said it would be inpossible to staff a prison in
Whittier because nobody would be able to get there. Downt own
Anchorage is 65 mles from Wittier and there is often a half-
hour wait at the tunnel because it is only one-way. Staffing was
a significant challenge at the Spring Creek Correctional Center
(SCCC) in Seward, which has nmuch easier access than Wittier.

He said HB 498 doesn’t nake sense because the State would be
required to pay whether or not the prison ever housed a prisoner.
He said five years would be conmtted to building costs and
bui l di ng costs have never been specified because there has never

been an economc analysis of the project. He noted that the
building costs killed a private prison proposal in Delta
Junction.

MR. SM TH expressed concern that the people pushing for HB 498
m ght have taken noney from contractors through contractual work
and that HB 498 nakes | ess sense than any proposal he has heard
in his 14 years of know edge of Al askan | egi sl ation.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how nuch noney the State spent housing
prisoners in Arizona.

MR. FRANK SM TH said the state spent $51 to $57 per day per bed.
He said there were extra charges for transportation and nedi cal
care but those charges would be the same in Wittier. He said
the Whittier prison would cost nore than the economc feasibility
study projected for the Delta Junction private prison proposal.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked how nuch noney the State has spent in
Ari zona.

MR. FRANK SM TH thought it was approximately $16 mllion per
year.

SENATOR COADERY asked if he thought that noney was better spent
in Arizona rather than Al aska.

MR SMTH said it would nmake nore sense to spend $16 million in
VWhittier than Arizona. He pointed out that tw ce that anount

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- May 3, 2002



woul d be spent in Wittier at a prison they wouldn’t be able to
staff because of poor pay and training.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how he knew t hat.

MR SMTH said he had read virtually every article witten on
private prisons in the past five years and has just finished a
chapter on Native Americans in private prisons for a publisher
He assured Senator Cowdery that he knows the subject and has
denonstrated it time after time in debates and testinony.

SENATOR CONDERY asked why he thought access to Seward was easier
than Waittier.

MR SM TH said Seward doesn’t have the problens related to the
wait to use the tunnel and Seward has far nore housing. He said
SCCC was a larger prison. He said a Womnm ng study concl uded t hat
a community of 9,000 couldn’t support a prison of the size
proposed in Wittier. He said Wittier has an annual popul ation
of about 130 people, many of whom are retired. He said, at the
nost, 10 people in Wittier could be potential enployees for the
pri son. He said HB 498 would be nothing but welfare for
VWhittier, which he thought received enough wel fare.

SENATOR COWDERY asked why enployees wouldn’t be able to comute
fromlarger cities.

MR. SM TH said the pay range that was suggested was between $8. 50
and $13 per hour. People in South Anchorage and G rdwood woul d
probably not want to work at the prison and people from downt own
Anchorage would have to drive 65 mles twice per day to make
barely over m ni num wage.

SENATOR CONDERY was sure they would raise the wages if they
couldn’t get enpl oyees.

MR. SM TH wasn’t sure that woul d happen. He said the State woul d
be in a peculiar position because the proposed contract was a
pay-for-pay contract. He said the request for qualifications
(RFQ was the sane RFQ that was used in the Wangell private
prison proposal. The conpany would be protected under the RFQ
VWhittier would be charged for start-up costs if the Legislature
passed HB 498 and the Governor vetoed it. He said M. Frank
Prewitt cited $3.5 mllion for startup costs.

SENATOR CONDERY said he had two boats in Wiittier and could be on

either one of them from South Anchorage in an hour and a half
from his house and out enjoying Prince WIIliam Sound. He didn’t

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- May 3, 2002



t hi nk access was a probl em
CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked Mayor Ben Butler to provide testinony.

MAYOR BEN BUTLER, City of Wittier, said unlike the rest of the
comunities that proposed private prisons, the conmunity of
VWhittier supports a prison; the Cty made sure of that before
going to the State or a contractor. He said they held public
hearings and had petitions circulated. Approximately 80% to 85%
of the people in Wiittier supported the proposal. He pointed out
that nobody fromWittier had testified agai nst HB 498.

He said the infrastructure needs of a large prison were already
in Wiittier. Chugach put in a |arge power line that supplies 25
negawatts of power. The community uses 15% of the avail abl e power
and would use 50% with the prison. Natural gas comes into
VWhittier and there is plenty of water. An onsite sewage treatnent
pl ant would be built with the prison.

MAYOR BUTLER said Wittier was able to learn fromthe experiences
of the last two comunities that had proposed a private prison.
The procurenent method was done through the Perkins Coie law firm
in Anchorage. He said they sent out an RFQ to which five
conpani es responded. He said an independent team consisting of
a building construction consultant from Anchorage, a certified
public accountant firm and a resident of Wittier, reviewed the
proposals. The City Council picked Cornell Corrections (Cornell).
He said there was no appeal to that decision so they felt the
process was done fairly.

SENATOR CONDERY said Whittier’'s population increased in the
sumer. He asked whether the vendors comuted from Anchorage or
lived in Wiittier during the sumrer.

MAYOR BUTLER said there is a little bit of both. Access was
reasonabl e because the tunnel was open 17 hours per day in the
sunmer . He said quite a few vendors lived in Grdwod and
comut ed every day. Hal f of the schoolteachers also lived in
G rdwood and commuted, even with the tunnel only open 68 hours
per week in the wnter. He said the tunnel issues were not as
serious as stated.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR asked how many conpanies conpeted for the
proj ect.

MAYOR BUTLER said the City of Wittier sent out five RFQ. One

conpany didn't respond at all and two other conpani es deci ded not
to respond. He said the two conpanies that did respond were

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- May 3, 2002



Cornell and Corrections Corporation of Anerica (CCA), the conpany
t hat housed the prisoners in Arizona.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked Mayor Victor Wellington, Sr. to provide
testi nony.

MAYOR VICTOR WELLINGTON, SR., Myor of the Metlakatla Indian
Community, asked that request for proposal (RFP) perm ssion be
put into HB 498. He said Metlakatla was interested in building a
prison yet he heard in commttee neetings that Wittier was the
only community interested in building a prison. That is not the
case; Metlakatla officials discussed the possibility with DOC
| egi slators and experts in Washington, D.C He said Metl akatla
has the infrastructure to support a prison. A new road is being
built between Metl akatla and Ketchi kan, which would increase the
wor kf orce and a new nedical facility is being built. He said it
woul d be good public policy to include RFP perm ssion to nake the
option available to every comrunity.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Frank Prewitt to provide testinony.

MR. FRANK PREW TT said he was a consultant for Cornell and the
Cty of Wiittier on the proposed prison project. He addressed a
handout that showed a snapshot of DOC s inmate population in
February 2002. He said each red block in the graph represented a
day in the nmonth in which the prison was operating over energency
capacity. He said every prison in the state was operating at or
near maxi mum capacity. He said the graph did not show the 600
prisoners in Arizona. He then addressed a handout that had been
taken fromthe DOC website showing growth in prison popul ations.
DOC experienced a steady upward growh in prison popul ations
since the early 1980s. He said DOC was adding 150 to 200
prisoners per year at an average growh rate of 4% He wasn’t
aware of any changes in law or denographics that would change
that upward trend.

SENATOR CONDERY asked what the difference was between soft and
hard beds.

2:25 p.m

MR. PREWTT said a hard bed was a jail or prison bed. A soft bed
was in a privately owned correctional residential center, also
known as a hal fway house. He noted that 80% of the prisoners are
f el ons. He said 4,280 hard beds would be needed in Al aska
prisons by the year 2005, |eaving the system roughly 1,380 beds
short. He said there was no question that there was a serious
need for in-state beds. He said the State could deal with the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- May 3, 2002



probl em by sending its prisoners to Arizona; that would be |ess
costly. He said Senator Cowdery nmade a good poi nt about whet her
that noney could be better spent in the state circulating in the
| ocal econony.

MR. PREWTT addressed another handout that conpared HB 498 to
Senator Green’s SB 231 and the Governor’s SB 336. He said SB 231
and SB 336 were basically variations on the sane thene seeking to
expand existing State correctional facilities throughout the
state by roughly 1,100 beds in SB 231 and 1,200 beds in SB 336.
He said HB 498 woul d add 1, 000 beds in one site.

He addressed a handout that showed the prison popul ation on Mrch
25, 2002, which showed sentenced and un-sentenced prisoners in
DOC facilities. He said sentenced and un-sentenced prisoners
wer e bei ng conbi ned under one roof throughout the state.

He said there were regional jails at statehood and sentenced
felons were housed outside the state in federal bureau prisons.
He said a jail was a prison to hold offenders after their arrest
through their trial and sentencing. At that point, they needed
to be transferred to a prison that addressed their security and
program needs. He said regional jails worked well wuntil the
Cleary v. State of Alaska lawsuit in the early 1980s. Part of
the Ceary |awsuit ended up as a settlenent agreenent between the
State and the prisoner plaintiffs to bring sentenced prisoners in
the federal bureau prisons back to Al aska.

MR. PREWTT said the regional jails |acked the econony of scale
to be cost-effective and |acked the resources to be program
effective. He said a prisoner serving a 10 to 15-year sentence
should cone out of prison with sone senblance of a behavioral
change and should be in a prison close to nental health,
substance abuse, vocational training and educational resources.
He said there were barely enough of those resources in the
comunities available for the public, let alone prisoners.

He said 1,400 of the prisoners in Al aska were Native Al askans.
Wil e 6% of the general popul ation was Native Al askan, 37% of the
pri son popul ation was Native Al askan. He said these individuals
needed the opportunity to try to break the recidivism cycle and
spreadi ng the services throughout the state couldn’t provide that
opportunity. He said that wasn't cost-effective or program
effective.

He said the Wiittier prison would make room in regional jails.

He said the prison would have enough econony of scale to offer
services in a cost-effective fashion and be close enough to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- May 3, 2002



resources to be able to deliver effective programm ng and invol ve
the various regional corporate entities such as Southcentral
Foundation in the delivery of prograns.

He addressed a handout that conpared the econom c inpact of HB
498 to SB 231 and SB 336. SB 336 would increase the operating
budget by $35 nmillion and the capital budget by $16.8 mllion for

a total of $51.8 nillion per year. SB 231 would increase the
operating budget by $29.5 million and the capital budget by $14.5
mllion for a total of $44 nmllion per year. HB 498 woul d

i ncrease the operating budget alone by $14.2 mllion, including
capi tal

He said the bottom of the handout showed a cost per day per bed
conparison of the three bills. SB 231 and SB 336 would carry the
average cost of $114 per day per bed. There would al so be an
anortized daily capital rate of $36 per day per bed for a total
of $152 per day per bed. He said HB 498 woul d cost between $89
and $91 per day per bed. He said HB 498 would set a ceiling on
the Whittier prison whereby both capital and operation would have
to be provided for 18% to 20% less than the statew de average.
He said HB 498 would nean a $59 per day per bed savings to the
St at e.

TAPE 02-24, SIDE B
2:30 p.m

MR. PREWTT said the Wiittier plan would cost nore than |eaving
the prisoners in Arizona. The total operating costs of the
Whittier prison would be $32 nillion dollars, which is $14
mllion nore than was being spent in Arizona. There woul d be
many benefits to the state if the prisoners were in Wittier
there would be approximately 325 wunion jobs and over 200
permanent jobs, as well as indirect jobs.

He said HB 498 was the best of the three bills because Wittier
is situated on a deep-water port where materials could be shipped
in inexpensively. Also, Wittier is situated near Anchorage wth
a popul ation of 250,000 to 300,000 and avail able contractors and
progranms. Thousands of people commute from Wasilla and Pal ner to
Anchorage every day. Whittier is approximately the sane distance
from Anchorage and people could commute there as well.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M.
Prewitt. There were none. He asked M. Charles Canpbell to
provi de testinony.

VR CHARLES CAMPBELL said he was a forner Di rector of

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- May 3, 2002



Corrections. He believed that |egislators knew that HB 498 is a
bad idea and that SB 231 is a superior approach to addressing
Al aska’ s prison bed space problens. He said the conmttee shoul d
table HB 498 and allow the Legislature to nove forward with a
responsi ble solution to the problem for the sake of efficiency.

He thought that HB 498 probably appealed to sone nenbers of the
commttee because the initial costs would be less than SB 231
He said it would be a natter of unw se expedi ency to pass HB 498
because it would be putting an inportant |aw enforcenent and
social service function at risk at the urging of a group of
peopl e with heavy financial stakes in the proposition rather than
bei ng gui ded by know edgeabl e experts. He said the future costs
coul d be enornous.

Having worked in various roles in the field of corrections for
over 50 years, he believes a 1,000-bed prison in Wittier is a
very bad i dea. He doubted the conmittee could find another
corrections professional, current or retired, who didn't agree
wi th himunless they had sone financial stake in the proposition.

MR. CAMPBELL said Wiittier is very inaccessible. Staff would be
marginally qualified and inexperienced with no |aw enforcenent
backup. Cornell would have a difficult tinme recruiting a staff
of qualified and conpetent line officers and an even harder tine
keepi ng them He said a new report in The Corrections Yearbook
i ndicated that the annual staff turnover rate in private prisons
across the country was 53% and the staff turnover rate in public
pri sons was 16%

He said the Whittier prison would be a $100 million enbarrassnent
and it could also be a legal problem He said the |egal
principles behind the Ceary case were alive and well. The
Constitution of the State of Alaska requires correctiona
adm ni stration based on principles of reformation. He didn’t
think Cornell had given serious thought to the principles of
reformation.

He disagreed with M. Prewitt’s comment that Wittier would be
the best place for the State to center its correctional efforts
such as education, therapy, Native culture prograns and
vocational prograns. The |lack of comunity resources in Wittier
would make it inpossible to have an effective correctional
program and the | arge size of the prison would nake it even worse
because large facilities do not work half as well as smaller
facilities. He said the main concern was bringing prisoners back
from Ari zona.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- May 3, 2002



CHAI RMAN TAYLOR asked if M. Canpbell really believed anybody
cared about that. He didn't think people cared. He thought the
prisoners were going to stay in Arizona as long as it was cheaper
for them to be there. He said anybody who tried to build a
prison or tried to do anything in Al aska woul d encounter advisory
votes or organized |abor and contractors would fight about it.
He said the prisoners would still be in Arizona but there would
be nore of them He said if he listened to Representative Andrew
Hal cro, Al aska should put out a bid for Mexico and Afghanistan

He said if we sent the prisoners far enough and treated them bad
enough they could be housed for practically nothing. He asked if
M. Canpbell really believed sonething would be put together in
the state.

MR. CAMPBELL said 95% of the people in Alaska prisons and the
Arizona prison were going to be released back into the community
so it makes sense to work with them and try to make them | ess
likely to commt further crimes. He said nothing would be worse,
in terms of good correctional principles, than to have a 1, 000-
bed for-profit private prison in Wiittier. He said Wiittier was
hardly better than Arizona in terns of accessibility for many of
the prisoners’ famlies.

SENATOR COWDERY didn't agree that Wittier is inaccessible. He
said he lived in Anchorage and had been to Whittier as many as
three tines in one day.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR hoped there was sone way to find a solution to
bring all the points made to sone sort of balance. He hoped they
real ly were concerned about bringing prisoners home from Ari zona.

MR. CAMPBELL said he had worked in seven different federal
prisons and had been in charge of all of the prisons in Al aska.
He couldn’t recall one prison where there wasn't staff that |ived
cl ose enough to be able to assenble an energency crew in five
m nut es. He said the hour and a half Senator Cowdery spoke of
was too long a tine in an energency situation.

SENATOR CONDERY said he was only speaking in terns of access.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. David Katzeek to provide testinony.
2:41 p.m

MR. DAVI D KATZEEK, Al aska Native Brot herhood (ANB) Canp #2, spoke
in Tlingit throughout his testinony and translated it into

Engl i sh. He thanked the commttee for allowing himto share a
serious, inportant and enotional issue for the Native peoples.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- May 3, 2002



He said his grandparents and ancestors said the nobst powerfu

thing human beings can do is work together for the good of one
another. He said HB 498 was an opportunity to be able to bring
private industry, governnent, Native conmunities and other
interested parties together to restore famlies, rehabilitate
i ndi vidual s, nake the public safe, reduce recidivism and reduce
the costs of prison care.

He said ANB Canp #2 was concerned about the issue because 70 to
80 of their people would be incarcerated in the next year. He
said sonebody was nmaking noney off of their people, whether it
was a private prison or the State of Alaska. He said the whole
pi cture needed to be | ooked at.

He said they went to Cornell because they had an opportunity.
They worked with the City of Hoonah, DOC, the Tlingit-Haida
Central Council, the Al aska Federation of Natives, the Departnent
of Health and Human Services, the Departnent of Justice and many
others to work toward resolving problens on their own. He said
the commttee had the opportunity to practice good |eadership by
maki ng decisions that were very difficult and sonetines not very
popul ar in public opinion.

MR. KATZEEK finished by saying, “Have you heard the cry of a
little boy who msses his daddy? Do you hear the crying of a
little girl?” He said that was really what it was all about. He
said it wasn’'t easy for himto sit in front of the conmttee and
talk about sonething as difficult and enotional as this issue.
He said part of the healing of the Native comunity was to be
able to say they wanted to hel p.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M.
Kat zeek. There were none. He asked Ms. Margot Knuth to provide
testi nony.

M5. MARGOT KNUTH, Strategic Planning Coordinator, DOC, said DOC
had concerns about HB 498. DOC uses four factors by which it
measur es | egi slative proposals that address correctional
facilities:

* Is it safe;
e Does it neet the State’s need for prison and jail beds;

e Is it within the structure of the governnent or governnent
rel ati onshi p; and

e |s it cost-effective?

She said HB 498 failed on all four standards. She said HB 498

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- May 3, 2002



was not the best of the three private prison proposals to cone
before the legislature; it was the worst.

She said Wittier is a difficult location for that size of a
pri son. It has a popul ation of 182 people. Adequate fire and
police protection are necessary for a large prison and Wittier
has neither. Whittier does have power and water, which is a good
start and land could be rented from ARRC. Wiittier does not have
an adequate sewage treatnent plant for such a large prison. It

would cost $4 million to build a new sewage treatment plant for
the prison alone or $9 million to expand Wittier’'s existing
sewage treatnent plant. She said there were sone significant

infrastructure costs to be considered. In addition, housing would
have to be provided for staff, educators, substance abuse
counselors, clergy and nedical staff for the prison. She said
they would probably have to commute from Anchorage since there
wasn’t any housi ng.

M5. KNUTH didn't believe that Wiittier has the capability of
government to be responsible for the operation of a prison. She
said Wiittier had never bonded a project, let alone one of this
magni tude. She said the bonding would require a level of
sophi stication Wittier does not have and the prison would cost
at least $110 million.

She said a private conpany usually built private prisons and then
opened its doors for business and negotiated a daily cost wth
interested clients. She said the cost for 700 Al aska prisoners
in Arizona was $57 per day per bed. She said Al aska was able to
change the rate and the nunber of prisoners dependi ng upon needs
and market pressures. She said there is an excess of private
prison bed space in the United States and the daily rates were
falling. She said the opening of the Anchorage jail created an
addi tional 200 in-state beds, which reduced the nunber of Arizona
prisoners to 600. DOC was in the process of negotiating daily
rates for those prisoners and expected to agree to about $53 per
day per bed or $11.6 mllion per year. She said every dollar per
day per bed represents $250,000 in Al aska’' s operating budget.

2:47 p.m

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if she thought the State could get a better
deal if the prisoners went to New Mexico, Mexico or Afghanistan

M5. KNUTH said there were significantly cheaper options than
Ari zona. She said housing the prisoners in Arizona was a
conprom se between appropriate care for inmates and cost. She
said DOC had nonitors at the Arizona prison. The contract with

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- May 3, 2002



Arizona is fairly strict in the needs for inmates. She said
Al aska requires greater programm ng and higher staffing ratios
than any other CCA clients in the United States because they
expected better treatnent.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked why.

M5. KNUTH said that is the personal commtnent of DCC. Q her
prisoners housed in Arizona were U S. Mrshall’s inmates and
inmates from Hawaii, Montana and Washi ngton, D.C The Al askan
representatives worked with the representatives of the other
inmate populations and were aware of how many hours other
jurisdictions spent working with CCA and what their progranmm ng
requi renents were. She said Al aska had the greatest presence.
She said the only client that was charged nore was the federa
government for sonme of its inmates.

M5. KNUTH said the proposal for a private prison in Wittier
woul d cost $32.8 million per year for 25 years. She said DCC
only paid for occupied beds in Arizona and could withdraw its
prisoners at any tine and stop paying. She said HB 498 calls for
a 25-year conmitment to $90 per day for 1,000 beds, regardl ess of
whet her all the beds are occupied or not and that doesn’t make
econoni ¢ sense.

She disputed M. Prewitt’s representation that DOC facilities
were over capacity. She said that was probably true on the day
that the snapshot was taken but since that tine, the Anchorage
jail opened and increased total capacity by over 250 beds. She
said DOC was at approximately 95% capacity statewide. Two
facilities were over capacity that week because of |ogistics
problens in transportation. DOC coul d house the Arizona prisoners
in the Wittier prison, but that would only occupy 600 of the
1,000 beds. She understood building for the future but cautioned
agai nst specul ating too high. She said DOC experienced a growth
rate of 200 prisoners per year during sone years but there had
been no growh in the previous two years.

She said SB 336 proposed regional expansion, which is needed
because of the pretrial population and short-term m sdenmeanants
that only spend a short period of time in the system
Approxi mately 33, 000 people were booked into the system each year
but only 5,000 of themwere retained at any given tine. She said
nost of these people couldn’t go through the prison in Arizona,
VWhittier, SCCC or the Palnmer Correctional Center (PCC) because
they needed to be housed close to their courts. There were also
| ong-term fel ons who needed to be in a prison with prograns, such
as SCCC, PCC and W I dwood Correctional Center. She said there is

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- May 3, 2002



a need for 1,200 beds but not in one |ocation.

SENATOR CONDERY asked about the town where the prison in Arizona
was | ocat ed.

MS5. KNUTH said Florence is about an hour and a half outside of
Phoeni x and has a popul ati on of approximately 60, 000.

SENATOR COWDERY asked if Florence has public water and sewer
facilities.

M5. KNUTH said it does, as well as adequate |aw enforcenent and
fire departnents.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if the prison is inside city limts.

M5. KNUTH said it is. She noted that Florence is the |argest
prison town in the United States.

She said the contract proposed in HB 498 represented about $820
mllion. She said M. Prewitt conpared the Wiittier estinmate of
$90 per day to the DOC average of $150 per day. She said the
$150 al so includes $32 for nmajor nedical coverage, transportation
costs and admi nistrative costs. She said the proper conparison
woul d be $150 per day per bed spent in DOC facilities to $122 per
day per bed in Wittier. She noted that the State woul dn’t own
the prison after the 25-year contract and ownership would be
wort h sonet hi ng. She said the State could build and operate a
single prison for the sane anobunt of noney or |ess but it doesn’'t
need one. She said HB 498 proposes a prison in the wong place
with the wong type of beds. She said DOC is also concerned
about the lack of a conpetitive procurenment process.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Janes Price to provide testinony.
3:00 p.m

MR. JAMES PRI CE believed HB 498 was a bad piece of legislation
and that the statenents nmade in support of HB 498 were incorrect.
He didn't believe it would be cost-efficient or that the State
woul d see any savi ngs. He believed the |ocation of the prison
woul d drive costs up.

He said a previous witness said there was a | ot of support for HB
498 in Wittier. He said the Kenai Peninsula Borough nmade the

sanme claimabout its private prison proposal. However, 73% voted
against the proposal wth the largest voter turnout of any
bor ough el ection. He said there was opposition throughout the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- May 3, 2002



| arge borough so he didn't think it was a “not-in-ny-backyard”
i ssue.

He argued that the Wittier proposal was worse than the Kena

proposal and believes that the lack of |ocal opposition was due
to the fact that there was no provision in the city code to all ow
for a vote of the people. He said people were reluctant to
oppose the Kenai proposal because of the political ram fications
of speaking out against a project supported by |ocal politicians.
He said that was probably also the case in Wittier.

He al so expressed concern about the sol e-source contract because
Cornell got the contract without really having to go through a
conpetitive bidding process. He said the Gty of Wittier was
going to owmn the prison and he didn't wunderstand why they
woul dn’t want to put the project out for bid to bring costs down.

MR. PRICE had 18 pages of sunmary detailing the failures of
private prisons in general and Cornell in particular. He said it
was interesting that auditors were already | ooking at Cornell for
possible conflicts in violation of the Security and Exchange
Comm ssion rules. He said Cornell’s financial problenms could
cause difficulties in their managenent of a private prison in
VWhittier.

He urged the commttee to kill HB 498.
CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked Ms. El sie Hendryx to provide testinony.

MS. ELSI E HENDRYX, Kenai Native Association (KNA), supported HB

498 and urged the commttee to support the bill. She said KNA
wanted to get their people back into Al aska and Whittier was not
that far away from Anchorage. She believed inmates would be

closer to their famlies, which would help the recidivism rate
with the Native people.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Ron Wl son to provide testinony.

MR. RON WLSON said he had been a correctional officer with DOC
for alnobst 19 years but the opinions he was expressing were his
own. He first had contact with private prisons when he worked in
None and Cornell wanted to place a halfway house next to the high
school. The people of None decided that wasn't a good idea. He
said communities in Al aska, such as Delta Junction, Kenai and
Wangell, decided private prisons were not a good idea. He
wondered what kind of rules Cornell had to play by. He said if
they were pl ayi ng baseball they woul d have struck out already; if
t hey were playing basketball they woul d have been penalized for a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -23- May 3, 2002



flagrant foul when they sued Delta Junction for $1 mllion. He
said despite all this Cornell was still in the gane.

He knew how Cornel |l operated. He used the follow ng analogy to
denonstrat e:

They’ Il conme into your town;, conme in wth their
corporate aircraft, their big cars, their big wallets
and promse you a trip to the noon. And while they're
wi ning and dining you and doing everything else, once
they have the contract with all the i's dotted and the
t’s crossed and it’s so iron clad that the turrets are

actually bleeding, they' Il set you out front and you’l
be |ooking down the road and Jethro Bodean from the
Beverly Hillbillies will be comng down the road with
his truck and pick you up and he will be taking you to
t he noon. Now the only place you'll be ending up is
the valley of the Moon Park [ph.] in Anchorage and then
he’ Il tell you you have to get your own ride hone.

MR. WLSON said private prisons were not a good idea and nost of
the communities that had been presented with the proposal of a
private prison agreed. He said SB 231 would help prisoners by
increasing the size of prisons in Jlocal comunities and
i ncreasing revenues in local conunities. He had the opportunity
to observe Native prison populations reacting with people from

their community when he worked in None. He said even the nost
obstinate Native prisoner would | ose their tough deneanor in the
presence of an el der. He said putting prisoners close to their

own communities could only help in their rehabilitation.
CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Jim LeCrone to provide testinony.

MR JIM LECRONE, Public Safety Enployees Association (PSEA),

wanted to coin a new term “situational accessibility.” He said
Mayor Butler nentioned that half of the teachers in Wittier
comut ed. He suspected that it wasn't a major energency if a

teacher mi ssed a day of school because of bad weather. He worked
wi th DOC several years previously and there was a | andslide that
cl osed the highway between Anchorage and Seward for five days.
He said nost people who worked at the Seward prison conmuted on a
weekly basis. He said the relief crew was prevented fromgetting
to Seward because of the landslide. He said that was not a bad
situation because enough people lived in Seward to naintain the
security at SCCC. He said that was “situational accessibility.”
He said a crew couldn’t be expected to be on duty nore than 24
hours nai ntai ning security control over 1,000 innates.

He had never heard Cornell address the Al aska Police Standards

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- May 3, 2002



Council (APSC) requirenents for certifying correctional officers.
He said Al aska statute mandates that all correctional officers
nmust nmeet APSC standards, which is a | engthy process of training,
psychol ogi cal eval uati ons and background eval uati ons. He expected
the legislature to hold Cornell to the sanme standard but
suspected it would raise their |abor costs significantly. He
urged the commttee to let HB 498 die. He said SB 231 and SB 336
were nmuch better bills.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Rick VanHatten to provide testinony.

MR. RI CK VANHATTEN, Al aska Correctional Oficers, said he was a
16-year correctional officer and president of the Al aska
Correctional O ficers chapter of PSEA He was speaking
personally and on behalf of the 735 correctional officers in the
state. He didn’t want to repeat the points that had al ready been
made. He said SB 231 was the best bill for DOC and the
comunities.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Brad WIson to provide testinony.

MR. BRAD WLSON, PSEA, said PSEA represented the Alaska State
Troopers, police departnents and correctional officers. He said
PSEA was opposed to HB 498. He said the commttee should support
SB 231 if they were concerned about the recidivismrate. He said
spreadi ng prisoners throughout the state would allow them to be
in their own comunities with their own comunity support. He
said that reduced recidivism

He said Cornell said their officers would neet APSC standards.
He asked why anyone who could neet APSC standards would work in
VWhittier with the long conmmute and | ess noney if they could work
for DOC with a 20-year retirenment program benefits and better
pay. He said DOC was hiring and had positions that had not been
filled.

He was involved in the private prison proposals in Anchorage,
Delta Junction, Kenai and Wangell. He said in every case the
| ocal governnment said they didn't need a vote because their
peopl e were 85%in support of it. He said that always turned out
to be wong when it did go to a vote. He said the sane argunent
was being used for Whittier. He said PSEA did everything they
could to get a vote in Wittier. He said if Mayor Butler was so
sure that 85% of the comunity was in support of the prison, he
woul d have a vote. He said polling and petitions could be
subj ective because they were given by supporters of the prison
who presented a one-sided story. He agreed with Representative
Eric Croft’s statenent that HB 498 was not about a private

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -25- May 3, 2002



prison; it was about powerful people putting noney into the
pockets of one corporation. He said we were better than that and
we needed to say no.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said the commttee noved SB 231 out of commttee
about two and a half weeks previously. He asked Ms. Dee Hubbard
to provide testinony.

MS. DEE HUBBARD said she was a nother from Sterling. She asked
the conmittee not to vote HB 498 out of committee. She said M.
Prewitt emailed an RFQto the city manager of Wittier on Cctober
23", She said it was the sane RFQ that was to be used in
Wangell. She said M. Prewitt also emailed a |list of conpanies
to send the RFQ to because the city manager didn’'t know who to
send it to. She said a nunber of communities were “being asked
to junmp through the Cornell hoops with M. Prewitt giving them as
much i nformation as he possibly could to help them” She said it
was odd that M. Prewitt, who represented Cornell, gave Wittier
an RFQ for Cornell to respond to.

She had found nine permits that Cornell would have to apply for
and satisfy; sone of which could be very costly. She said the
incinerator could cost $5 to $10 million. She said no one knew
what the project would cost because no feasibility study was
required. She said there was a big difference between building a
prison in Anchorage and building a prison in Wittier. For
exanple, a prison in Wiittier would need to be built to wthstand
a 200-pound per square foot roof load. She said that was a | ot
nore concrete and steel than was used in Anchorage.

She spoke to an anal ysis she had given conmmttee nenbers and said
Cornell and Whittier expected to have sonme costs reinbursed
t hrough bonds. She said the mayor had been living in Juneau for
three weeks with Cornell covering those costs.

TAPE 02-25, SIDE A
3:18 p.m

M5. HUBBARD said Sec. 7 of HB 498 appeared to bundle the YKCC and
VWhittier projects together.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. John Duffy to provide testinony.

MR. JOHN DUFFY, Manager, WMatanuska-Susitna (Mat-Su) Borough, said
SB 231 was the borough’s preference. He agreed w th Senator
Cowdery’s statenent that Alaskan dollars needed to remain in
Al aska to provide econonm c opportunities for Al aska residents and
contractors.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 26- May 3, 2002



He said the Wiittier prison would cost $89 to $91 per day per
bed. He said other facilities have conparable costs, if not
less, i.e. PCC costs $58 per day per bed. He passed out a
handout that showed the costs of correctional facilities in the
state and noted that other facilities also cost less than the
VWhittier proposal.

MR. DUFFY said the capital costs associated wth the Wittier
pri son would need to be scrutinized closely. The sewage treatnent
prison could cost between $4 mllion and $9 nillion according to
DEC esti nat es. El ectrical power was avail able but a substation
woul d be needed to connect it to the prison, which would cost
$500, 000 to $750, 000.

He said there are also other reasons to support the regional
approach. Unenpl oynent rates throughout the state are very high:
7.7% in the Mat-Su and Ketchi kan Gateway Boroughs; 9.6% in the
Kenai Peni nsul a Borough; and 10.6% in Bethel. He said nost of
the workers for the Whittier prison would comrute from Anchor age,
where there was a 4. 3% unenpl oynent rate. The Mat-Su Borough felt
the economc benefits of prison expansion should be shared
t hroughout the state. He passed out a mnmeno from Northern
Economics that estinated the effects of prison expansion as
detailed in SB 231. He said the regional approach would result in
approximately 300 jobs in Ketchikan, 200 jobs in Fairbanks and
over 1,000 jobs each in the Mat-Su and Kenai. He said SB 231
woul d share the econom c inpacts of prison expansion throughout
the state.

He believed providing a regional approach would hel p
rehabilitation rates because prisoners would be |ocated closer to
their famlies and networks.

SENATOR THERRI AULT informed the commttee that he was not going
to propose an anendnent to include |anguage for PCC in HB 498
because it would trigger a title change.

SENATOR ELLIS proposed Anendnment 1 to delete Sec. 7. He said
there was progress earlier in the process to disengage the
VWhittier and YKCC projects and the deletion of Sec. 7 would
ensure that the two weren’t entangl ed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked who brought the anmendnent to Senator
Ellis and why legislative drafters didn't draft it.

SENATOR ELLI S said he believed Senator Hoffrman’s staff drafted it
in consultation with legislative drafters.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -27- May 3, 2002



SENATOR THERRI AULT said Sec. 7 nmade it appear that nothing would
happen at YKCC unl ess the Wittier proposal went forward.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR objected to the notion for the purpose of a rol
call vote.

Upon a roll call vote, Senator Ellis voted in favor of Amendnent
1 and Senators Cowdery and Therriault and Chairman Tayl or voted
agai nst Amendnent 1. Therefore, Anendnent 1 failed to be adopted
by a vote of one to three.

SENATOR CONDERY noved CSHB 498(FIN) am out of committee wth
attached fiscal notes and i ndividual recomendati ons.

SENATOR ELLI'S objected. He strongly supported the regional
approach proposed in SB 231. He would rather see nobney invested
in vocational and technical education, other education prograns,
other alternatives in diversion prograns and rehabilitation at
other levels than new prisons. He said nore prison space is
needed but there was no contest between HB 498 and SB 231.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there was any further discussion. There
was none.

Upon a roll <call vote, Senators Cowdery and Therriault and
Chai rman Tayl or voted in favor of noving CSHB 498(FI N) am out of
commttee and Senator Ellis voted against noving CSHB 498(FIN) am
out of commttee. Therefore, CSHB 498(FIN) am noved out of
commttee by a vote of three to one with attached fiscal notes
and i ndi vi dual recommendati ons.

#

The next order of business before the comittee was the
confirmation hearing for Arthur S Robinson to the Select
Committee on Legislative Ethics.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG SELECT COWM TTEE ON LEG SLATI VE ETH CS

CHAl RMAN TAYLOR asked M. Arthur S. Robinson to explain why he
would like to serve on the Select Commttee on Legislative
Et hi cs.

MR, ARTHUR S. ROBI NSON said he was asked to fill the position by
Chi ef Justice Dana Fabe. He said it had been a while since he' d
done public service. He was a district attorney alnost thirty
years ago and worked in State governnment for a while. He wanted
to give sonething back to the communities. He thought serving on

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 28- May 3, 2002



the Select Conmttee on Legislative Ethics wuld be an
opportunity to do that without doing full-time public service.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M.
Robi nson. There were none. He appreciated M. Robinson’s
willingness to serve. He said it isn't an easy task and nany
peopl e get the issues of norality and ethics confused.

MR. ROBI NSON agreed the issues are different.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR appreciated the fact that he understood the
distinction. He wished himthe best in his efforts.

SENATOR COWDERY noved that the Senate Judiciary Commttee report
a letter to the full Senate recommending Arthur S. Robinson for
confirmation of the full body.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

The final order of business before the conmttee was SIJR 13.

#SJR 13

SJR 13- CONST. AM PERVANENT FUND

CHAIRVAN  TAYLOR said SJR 13 proposed anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the Al aska
permnent fund. He asked M. Jay Hogan to provide testinony.

MR, JAY HOGAN referred the commttee to his letter dated May 3,
2002. He wanted to make one correction to that letter and said
HB 304 had passed out of the House of Representatives and was now
in the Senate. He said the letter explained his position.

He said a great deal of change had been nmade to the permanent
fund by statute over the past 26 years. He said the investnent
policy and inflation proofing was provided for by statute, as
well as a host of other inprovenents. He said that was the way
it was supposed to be.

He said he sat through many committee hearings in 1975 when the
statutory permanent fund was passed by the | egislature and vet oed
by the governor. He said the discussions in 1976 focused on
making it a flexible provision so that future |egislatures would
be able to change the adm nistrative structure, purposes of use
and ot her things. He said the only provisions that were put in
the Constitution were the concept of a trust fund, the source of
i ncone (25% of certain mneral royalties) and that funds could

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -29- May 3, 2002



not be w thdrawn once they were in the corporate status.

MR. HOGAN said Wonm ng had created a payout provision for their
public school fund and permanent mneral trust fund by statute.
He said other states did the sane thing by statute and through
their constitution. He said it was historically correct to nake
this change by statute. He didn’t understand why there should be
a constitutional provision when a statutory provision would do
t he j ob.

3:35 p.m

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said it seened that SIJR 13 would set up a
di sconnect between the earnings and dividends by going to a fixed
average percentile instead of the 5-year inconme averaging. He
asked if SIJR 13 would cause dividends to eat into the principa
of the fund.

MR. HOGAN said from his own research on the issue he discovered
that there were a nunber of endowrents and trust funds that used
the 5% payout nethod. The theory is that over tinme it would
allow for inflation proofing of the fund and allow a reasonabl e
return of noney to be used for other purposes. He said the State
had nore than 20 years of experience inflation proofing the
permanent fund by statute by putting earnings reserve noney into
it and inflation proofing on an annual basis. He said that was
the choice of those individual |egislatures. He felt the
permanent fund had been doubly inflation proofed. He said the
| egi sl ature should retain the ability to choose what to do with
the incone of the pernmanent fund.

SENATOR THERRI AULT conmmented that M. Hogan’s letter provided a
good synopsis of the history of the permanent fund and what ot her
states were doing. He would probably use the first part of the
|l etter that talked about the creation of the permanent fund. He
received an email froma constituent that said the permanent fund
was created to dish out dividends. He was amazed that there was
so nmuch m sinformati on out there.

He said the Senate State Affairs commttee substitute (CS)
addressed the issue of the possibility of eroding the principa
of the permanent fund. He referred to page 1, line 16, which
stated, “Mowiney may be appropriated from the earnings reserve
account.” He said Section 1 specified that all inconme fromthe
permanent fund would be retained in a separate earnings reserve
account . He said the 5% draw was |imted to that earnings
reserve account and woul d not be taken fromthe principal.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 30- May 3, 2002



CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any further questions for M.
Hogan. There were none. He asked Ms. Sheila Howe to provide
testi nony.

M5. SHEILA HONE, N E C, said she was a nother. She said she
spent nost of the sunmer reading over the information on SJR 13.

She supports SJR 13 because the bill would give sone stability
and permanency to the inflation proofing qualities of the
per manent fund. She wunderstood that the permanent fund was

initially intended to neet the needs of the state in the future.
She wasn’t concerned about the dividends paid out on a yearly
basi s. She saw the need to protect the permanent fund agai nst
inflation and perpetuities and thought SJR 13 was the best way to
acconplish that.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if she was in Al aska during the advisory
vote on the permanent fund dealing wth the |ong-range fiscal
pl an.

M5. HONE said she had been in Al aska since 1969 and had not
m ssed an el ecti on.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if she felt confortable telling the
committee how she vot ed.

M5. HONE was agai nst that proposal because of the way it was laid
out. She wasn’t agai nst using the APF.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said M. Eddie Burke [ph.] said he spoke for
Ms. Howe. He said M. Burke's editorials |unped Ms. Howe’s no-
vote with the 83% that voted against the proposal. He said M.
Howe’ s position was very different than M. Burke’s.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Robert Storer to provide testinony.

MR. ROBERT STORER, Executive Director, Alaska Pernmanent Fund
Corporation (APFC), Departnent of Revenue (DOR), said the board
of APFC believed that inflation proofing should be nenorialized
in the Constitution. He said that could be done by creating a
spending limt of no nore than 5% of the noving average of the
APF over a five-year period. He said only the earnings reserve
of the APF would be available and the principal of the APF would
be protected. He said SIR 13 was heard extensively in the Senate
State Affairs Conmittee.

MR. JIM KELLY, Director of Communications, APFC, DOR referred

the commttee to the nmenorandum from M. Storer requesting
anendnents to SJR 13 dated April 23, 2002. He addressed the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -31- May 3, 2002



fourth paragraph on page 2 of the nmenorandum which requested a
t echni cal anmendnent:

Sec. 30. Transi tion. On the effective date of the
2002 anendnents relating to the Al aska permanent fund
(art. 11X, sec. 15), the balance [PORTION] of the
statutory earnings reserve account (AS 37.13.145) [THAT
CONSI STS OF | NCOVE] of the permanent fund s
transferred to the earnings reserve account established
in Section 15(a) [15(b)] of Article IX

MR. KELLY said he discussed this anendnent wth Senator
Therriault and believed he was supportive of it. He said APFC
had not had tine to show the Senate State Affairs CS to the board

and |egal counsel when it was noved out of commttee. Af ter
| egal counsel reviewed the CS, it was discovered that 15(b) woul d
need to be changed to 15(a). He said that was just a technica

error. The addition of the word “bal ance” and the subtraction of
“that consists of income” would be necessary to nake the intent
clear. He said the APF s nmarket value was the conbined total of
the principal, the realized and the unrealized incone. He said
5% of that would be the payout |imt in any given year, all of
whi ch woul d cone fromthe earnings reserve account.

He asked for a further anmendnent to add the words “inflation
proofing” after the words “relating to” in the first line of the
title. He said SIJR 13 was really about inflation proofing the
APF. He said the 5% limt would ensure that the APF was nade
permanent in the Constitution. He said as long as those
provisions were in the Constitution, APFC would be able to
provide a growing incone stream in addition to what would be
needed to be retained to offset inflation. He believed the
change in the title would make it easier for the people to
support SJR 13 at the polls after it passed the |egislature.

CHAl RMAN TAYLOR noved Anendnent 1 to add the words “inflation

proofing” after the words “relating to” on page 1, line 1 in the
title; replace the word “portion” wth the word “bal ance” on page
2, line 9; strike the words “that consists of inconme” on page 2,

line 10; and replace “15(b)” with “15(a)” on page 2, line 11.
3:50 p. m

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the wording of the title had gone back
and forth between the legislative drafters and the APFC. He said
bill titles were supposed to express the contents of the bill.
He wunderstood that the APFC wanted the title reworded for
sal esmanship but inflation proofing didn't really cover the ful

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -32- May 3, 2002



contents of the bill. He said SIJR 13 was nore than just an act
dealing with inflation proofing because it would set up the 5%
dr aw. He said inflation proofing would be acconplished but he
didn’t think that would be a correct title for the bill

SENATOR DONLEY said it wouldn’t be a legal title.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR renoved the title change from Anendnent 1.

MR. KELLY said the rest of the amendnent was for clarification
purposes. He said the point of that section was to transfer al

of the nmoney that was in the earnings reserve account and
everything that everybody thought was in the earnings reserve

account . He said that was currently in a statutory earnings
reserve account and SJR 13 would set up a constitutional earnings
reserve account. They just wanted to be sure that the two

accounts mat ched up.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said that was added in the Senate State
Affairs Conmttee so that the | egislature woul dn’t have access to
the earnings reserve account by a sinple majority vote. He said
the new account would be protected and only 5% per year would
come out.

MR. KELLY said the words “that consists of inconme” should be
stricken because they suggested that the wunrealized earnings
woul d not be transferred when they shoul d be.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said they wanted to nake sure that everything
from the statutory earnings reserve account got noved into the
constitutional earnings reserve account.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there was objection to Anendnent 1

There being no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there was further discussion on SJR 13.
There was none. He asked if anyone el se wished to testify on SIR

13. There was nobody.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved CSSJR 13(JUD) out of commttee wth
attached fiscal note and i ndividual recomendati ons.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR noted that there was an objection
Upon a roll call vote, Senators Cowdery, Ellis and Therriault and

Chai rman Taylor voted in favor of noving CSSIJR 13(JUD) out of
commttee and Senator Donley voted agai nst noving CSSJR 13(JUD)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 33- May 3, 2002



out of comittee. Therefore, CSSJR 13(JUD) noved out of
commttee by a vote of four to one with attached fiscal note and
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons.

#

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the Senate
Judiciary Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 3:54 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 34- May 3, 2002



